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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Qualifications of land surveyor interns & regulation of land surveyors & land surveyor intern. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Opens the hearing on HB 1387. 
 
Rep Beadle:  Introduces HB 1387.  This bill is to make sure that we have proper training for 
land surveyors & a cleanup bill.   
 
4:15 
 
Rep Adams:  On section 5, it has an effective date of July 1, 2028. 
 
Rep Beadle:  On section 2 & 5, are related.  Currently, there is the internship process where 
they have eight years to go through out the following process.  The delayed effective date, 
really is to make sure that anyone in the pipeline now, that nothing changes in your current 
process. 
 
Rep Adams:  If I start this program two years from now, am I under the new standard? 
 
Rep Beadle:  No. 
 
Mike Krumwiede~Representing the ND Society of Professional Land Surveyors or 
NDSPLS:  Attachment 1. 
 
11:15 
 
Rep M Nelson:  We are going to have section 2 being amended some but basically we are 
going to have a period of time where both section 2 & 3.  There will be two paths.  Eventually, 
section 2 goes away & then you do section 3.  We are modeling what they are doing in 
Montana & theirs will go into effect in 2022. 
 
Mike Krumwiede:  That’s correct. 
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Rep P Anderson:  What prompted this bill? 
 
Mike Krumwiede:  We are getting less & less professional land surveyors.  We want to get 
some more qualified surveyors.  Reciprocity, there will be no change. 
 
Rep C Johnson:  This is just specifically for land interns; how long will it take to become a 
professional land surveyor?  Is there another exam? 
 
Mike Krumwiede:  There is four years of experience once you are an intern, pass another 
test, & then become a land surveyor. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  We keep increasing standards, that effects reciprocity. 
 
Mike Krumwiede:  We are far below & we are coming up with standards.  If you are a LSI in 
another state, they can easily move because it’s a national certification. 
 
Aaron Hummert~Legislative Co-chair for ND Society of Professional Land Surveyors:  
Attachments 2, 3, 4. 
 
25:00 
 
Rep M Nelson:  Can an engineer survey? 
 
Aaron Hummert:  They can do an engineering survey defined in statute.  When it comes to 
land boundaries determinations, no. 
 
Rep M Nelson:  You can’t use a GPS to determine? 
 
Aaron Hummert:  That’s correct.  There’s more to it than the equipment. 
 
Rep Richter:  What is the age categories of the ones that goes with the experience? 
 
Aaron Hummert:  It’s all over the map.  I can’t say. 
 
Matt Weeks~Professional Land Surveyor in ND:  Attachment 5. 
 
30:15 
 
Rep D Ruby:  Can you explain the certification? 
 
Matt Weeks:  You need 8 years of experience.  This bill requires an education portion of the 
8 years.   
 
Rep D Ruby:  Certification, what would that entail? 
 
Matt Weeks:  The minimum some surveying education & 4 years of experience.  
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Rep D Ruby:  Do those classes exist right now? 
 
Matt Weeks:  They are available on line through Wyoming & Oklahoma.  At NDSSS, they 
are there but they haven’t been updated for the past couple of years. 
 
Rep Schauer:  Why are we seeing these surveyors shrink & is it safe? 
 
Matt Weeks:  Technology is replacing the people. 
 
Bonnie Staiger~Representing American Council of Engineering Companies:  We are 
in support of the legislation. 
 
Holly Beck~President-Elect of ND members of the American council of Engineering 
Companies (ACEC):  Attachment 6. 
 
Michael Gunsch~Representing ND Society of Professional Engineer as Legislative 
Committee Co-Chair:  Attachment 7.    
 
40:17 
 
Rep Richter:  If I get an associate’s degree & work for a surveying company for 5, 6, 7 years, 
do I have to take the class work or simply take the test? 
 
Michael Gunsch:  The way I understand is that once you have your 4 years of experience, 
you can take your LS exam.  Now, as this bill changes, you are going to have to have the 
education requirement in order to take the exam.  That is why the end date is 2028.  If you 
are going to do this, you need the educational aspect  
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify in support of HB 1387, opposition, neutral?  
Closes the hearing.  What are the wishes of the committee? 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Moves a Do Pass. 
 
Rep Bosch:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further discussion? 
 
Chairman Keiser:  I don’t know if we are making it harder or easier to get into this field?  I 
like the way it gives people the chance in the pipe stream & I agree with the educational 
requirements. 
 
Roll was taken for a Do Pass on HB 1387 with 11 yes, 1 no, 2 absent & Rep M Nelson 
is the carrier. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to qualifications of land surveyor interns; relating to regulation of land surveyors and 

land surveyor interns; relating to qualifications of land surveyor interns; and to provide an 

effective date. 

 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-7 

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on HB 1387. All members were present.  
 
Mike Krumwiede, North Dakota Society of Professional Land Surveyors: see 
attachment #1 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
Aaron Hummert, Co-Chair of Legislative Committee, North Dakota Society of 
Professional Land Surveyors: see attachment #2 for testimony in support.  
 
Aaron also handed out testimony (see attachment #3) on behalf of Kenneth Link, Retired 
Land Surveyor, and Rolly Ackerman, Chairman, North Dakota State Board of Registration 
for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors (see attachment #4) in support of the bill. 
 
Chairman Klein: Would two years of schooling make any difference? There are certain 
projects that schooling isn’t gonna help you solve, as opposed to on the job training? A lot of 
what you’ve learned, you did so on the job, right? 
 
Aaron: Correct. This isn’t circumventing the experience but we think we need the foundation 
of schooling as well.  
 
Chairman Klein: Do you have enough land surveyors? 
 
Aaron: Our numbers are declining. Right now without education they aren’t passing the test, 
so that’s another thing. This really is to give people the tools they need to pass the test.  
 
Chairman Klein: What would excite me to tell my son or daughter to go to be a land 
surveyor?  
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Aaron: I can share what I find exciting about the job, one is the historical aspect. Finding 
original markers from the late 1800s as pretty as can be. And artifacts that nobody else knew 
were out there.  
 
Chairman Klein: What I’m suggesting is how do we entice people to go out for land 
surveying? 
 
Aaron: Our society is actively pursuing that. We’ve given out over $100,000 in scholarships. 
We’re active at conventions. We pay for the students free and clear to come, we pay their 
hotel rooms and meals to get them to come see what we’re doing.  
 
Senator Burckhard: What does LIDAR mean? 
 
Aaron: I don’t entirely know the acronym. It’s similar to radar, it sends out a sensing wave 
and bounces back and collects. They can do it from the ground LIDAR and it senses the 
room. You can do it from a plane or a helicopter.  
 
Senator Kreun: For a while they used it to determine flood plains.  
 
Senator Burckhard: How do you get distances within one 100th of a foot?  
 
Aaron: GPS tolerances, you do it through redundant measurements and choosing the right 
instrument for the job. You know a GPS and using the it properly. Or robotic total stations or 
whatever else you need to do to get that precision and to know that that precision is correct 
you need that educational component from the statistics standpoint.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: How did that guy that came over from Norway get within 1/100th of 
a foot? 
 
Aaron: That’s the balance. Our measurements today we have to report to that level of 
precision. When they were doing the general land office surveys, there was distance error 
with chains and solar compasses and magnetic compasses. We don’t redo the 
measurements if the original stone was two feet from the chain age or five feet, that’s our 
marker so the measurement that we retrace from 1890 is different than what we have to 
perpetuate. Our measurement on that today needs to be very close.  
 
Chairman Klein: I think the question that we’re all going to ask is we’re building a fence and 
the fence needs to be pretty solid today so we’re counting on you to put the markers in the 
right spot. And that’s why you believe additional education is necessary? A two-year 
program? That’s available at two of our institutions?  
 
Aaron: As far as the fence building aspect, North Dakota is the lowest requirement. 
Minnesota is a four-year degree. Montana is implemented at associates degree. I believe 
South Dakota is a certain level of credits. So actually the fences are built around North Dakota 
for us to get out.  
 
Chairman Klein: So you have the training so that you can practice in a variety of states and 
that’s cause of your educational background? 
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Aaron: Correct I’m licensed in Minnesota currently. As far as the bill, I have a flow chart you’ll 
see it on the testimony. And actually the minimum requirement is a certificate. And appended 
to my testimony you’ll see four curriculums. One from the North Dakota school of Science 
Wahpeton, one from Bismarck State, those are these associates degree programs that are 
offered in North Dakota currently, and there’s two online programs I believe from the 
University of Wyoming in Laramie, there’s one from Oklahoma that’s offered online. And 
actually I needed to supplement my education, I got that online as well. So with this online 
education, we really believe that there are a lot of opportunities.  
 
Chairman Klein: So you wouldn’t have to sit through a two-year program, do the English 
and the Math, you can go online to a school that provides that training and that would qualify 
to get you over the educational component that we are looking for?  
 
Aaron: That’s what our hope is, granted, each curriculum would need to be approved by our 
board even. And too, you’ll even read that in the board’s statement.  
 
Senator Kreun: In this study in the curriculum, you say it isn’t going to change anything as 
far as the internship, but are you going into geospatial technical aspect of surveying as well? 
Are you gonna hire those individuals that come through those programs? 
 
Aaron: Ideally that’s who we would hire. Are you talking like GIS type stuff? 
 
Senator Kreun: There are new programs out there called geotechnical space studies and 
they use all kinds of drones and geospatial technical aspects out of there in with your other 
components that you’re already doing. If they had those degrees already would they be able 
to surpass the internship stuff and go on to that next level. Because in their studies they’ve 
already been doing that work out in the field. is that part of what you’re looking at in those 
educational aspects? 
 
Aaron: To speak to that point, there’s a sunset out to 2028 so the sole purpose of that is to 
not shut anybody out. So essentially up until that point you can do the LSI two and a half 
times over in that time, so anybody that might have an alternative educational path, we can 
get them in that system.  
 
Senator Kreun: That opens a door that’s pretty new technology that’s going on, usually only 
used in the military.  
 
Senator Roers: Why are you sun setting the internship program? Why is that? 
 
Aaron: The sunset is on the current experience only requirement, so they are still gonna be 
a land survey intern.  
 
Chairman Klein: So after 2028 you’re gonna need an educational background as well? But 
up to this point all those folks that still want to be a surveyor can do it by experience.  
 
Aaron: We’re not trying to shut anybody out.  
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Senator Piepkorn: What’s the main crux of the bill? 
 
Chairman Klein: The educational component. We’re looking to provide this highly new 
technology assistance so that these students of land surveying after 2028 will need an 
educational component in addition to the experiential. That’s the biggest part that I see.  
 
Aaron: That’s correct. And we’re putting a sunset on to it and in 2028 the certificate would 
be the minimum level of education.  
 
Senator Roers: When we get to 2028 and they need this certificate, is there an in house 

opportunity to train them and get that certificate or is it only through these certified institutions 
that they can get this from? Like I know electricians like to train their own, would you do 
something like that? 

 
Aaron: Not now, we’d be looking at an accredited program.  
 
Matt Weeks, Professional Land Surveyor: see attachment #5 for testimony in support.  
 
Senator Burckhard: With 25 years of experience you couldn’t get a job in Minnesota? They 

wouldn’t grandfather you in with your years of experience? 
 
Matt: They would not.  
 
Chairman Klein: If you’re coming from Minnesota, could you get a job in North Dakota? 
 
Matt: If I’m registered in Minnesota, but I could not stamp and sign my name saying I’m the 

person in responsible charge.  
 
Chairman Klein: I’ve heard some of you state that could go to South Dakota, can the South 

Dakota folks come to North Dakota or would they have to do something extra?  
 
Matt: They can, they would need to go through a process. They need to become registered 

in North Dakota, that involves a state specific exam. Our laws are different than all of the other 
states. That’s a two-hour exam, it can take roughly 3-6 weeks. So in that time you could be in 
responsible charge in North Dakota.  

 
Chairman Klein: In my experience with the surveyor, the most difficult part is finding a 

reliable starting point.  
 
Matt: Most of the people that you see out surveying are the technicians, it may be the intern, 

very seldom is it the registered land surveyor, the PLS. Our job is to oversee all of that other 
work. Additionally, to convince your child to become a land surveyor, if they’re a high school 
senior, fill out an application and you will automatically get money to go to school. About the 
pass rate, the success rate of first time people taking the exam without education, there is a 70% 
failure rate, the second time is even less.  

 
Senator Piepkorn: Is there a concern that the current professional land surveyors with the 

rapid pace of advancement in technology, and you have to sign off on this stuff. Do the current 
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professional land surveyors have the skills, knowledge, math, technology understanding, to 
properly train or approve the interns?  

 
Matt: In Certain aspects, yes. In photogrammetry, I would not sign off on that. I don’t have 

the knowledge there. In the GPS, I feel I have the knowledge yes. That technology changes 
rapidly. We have a requirement for 15 hours of continuing education each year. 30 hours for a 
biennium. Our license renews every year so we need 30 hours in that time frame.  

 
Holly Beck, President-Elect of ACEC: testified in support of the bill. Just wanted to inform 

you that ACEC is in support of this bill. And as the owner of a small surveying and engineering 
company, I also support this bill.  

 
Senator Piepkorn: Talk to me about technology and continuing education so on and so forth.  
 
Holly: I hired technicians right out of the four-year program, I also hire technicians out of the 

two-year program. I’ve also hired a few that didn’t have any education at all. They learned from 
the bottom up and worked on a surveying crew. Those that don’t have education do have 
problems with the trigonometry and math of the job. The education requirement would allow 
them to get a better education. I don’t have time to teach them math in addition to all of the other 
things I’m teaching them. I also have a handout with the education requirements of the 
neighboring states here. See attachment #6.  

 
Chairman Klein: closed the hearing on HB 1387.  
 
See attachment #7 for additional testimony submitted to the committee.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Going back to Vice Chairman Vedaa’s observation about the early land 

surveyors, got me wondering what committee those Norwegian Viking surveyors had to testify 
in to be able to lay those old stone markers?   
 

Senator Burckhard: Moved a Do Pass.  
 
Senator Kreun: Seconded.   
 
Chairman Klein: For you folks that are still here in 2028, you’ll have to look at this again and 

see how it’s going. Who knows what technology will be like by then.  
 
Senator Kreun: Your testimony fits right in to what is going on in this arena. This geospatial 

program is a two-year program right now and they are coming out with a lot more information, 
the people that I know that went through it are now in the military because military people want 
them. I think we should look at that group, and if we’re talking about paying for school, a prime 
example would be to pay for these guys to do this and have them come out with a two-year 
degree and they get all that field study and everything.  

 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.   
Motion Carried.  
Senator Kreun will carry the bill.  
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